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A .  l’laintill I la \  Sull icientl \  Alleged ‘l‘liat Cox Hat1 Rolh a “ H i ~ l i  IIejy-ee of 
Involvenient” 1 1 1  r ~ ; ~ ~ C o ~ n ‘ s  I’ax-Slianiniinz Opera t ions  and “Actual Notice ol 
:in lllcjpl Use” Of I t s  Scwiccs  l i v  l;ax.Com. 

As Cox .ickiiowlcdyc\. ;I t’onimon cii i~i ’ iei ’  like Cox may be held liable for violating 

t l ic 1 ~ C P A  i f  i t  cxhillits “;I high t l s y c c  ( 1 1  iiivul\crncnt O I ~  ac t t i~ l  noticc of an illcgal LISC and lrlilure 

to t:ihe s ~ e p s  to pi-even1 such Limnsmissioiis.” Rules and Regtilations Implementing the Telephone 

Coiisuinei Protection Act o f  1991. Repoi.! and Ordei-, 7 F.C.C.K. 8752, 8780 (1992) (“FCC TCPA 

Ordei~“) (emphasis added). Hei-e, Plaintilf has alleged facts sufficient to constitute both a “high 

degree of involvement” by Cox in  Fax.com’s violations of the TCPA, and Cox’s “actual 

knowledge of an illegal use” of its services by Fax.com - fax broadcasting in  violation of the 

TCPA Cox’s OIL‘II J / u / e f i w / t / . >  on its websile establish that il knew that: ( I )  Fax.com’s “core” 

Ihtisincss was f a x  broadcasting adveitiscmenrs foi. goods and services (“marketing”): and (2) these 

adveiiisements were bi.oadcast ro “one or the lareest f ~ x  databases i n  the world” (Compl. 91 35) ,  

nezaring :my i.easonablc infctciicr that i ~ e c i ~ ~ i c n ~ s  had given their “prior express invitation 01’ 

permission” LO receive thew ti~ansrnissiuns, which is necessary to make them lawful  under the 

TCPA. N o  more is iequired to establish knowledge of an “illegal use” in violation of the TCPA.  

See 47 U.S.C. $ 227(a)(4) (“The tcim ‘unsolicited advertisement’ means any malerial advertising 

thc commercial availability oi~ quality of any property. goods. or services which is lransmitted to 

a n y  pcrson without that person’s prior express invitation or permission.”). At a minimum, 

Plaintiff has allcged sufficient facts, including “reasonable inferences” therefrom, Enesco Corn.. 

146 F.3d at 1085, to entitle Plaintiff to take discovery on the issue. 

Not on ly  does Plaintiff allege facts giving m e  to a reasonable inference that Cox 

was awaie of Fax.com’s “illegal use” of its sei.vices; Plaintiff alleges - again in the words of COX 

2nd Fax.com --  that  Cox knowingly and deliberately provided Fax.com with all of the custom- 

tailored infrastructure necessary to engage in its massive and unlawful fax-spamming operation. 

See Compl. ¶¶ 35-38; Notice of Apparent Liability of Fax.com, ¶I9 (“Fax.corn’s primary 

business activity itself ConsLitutcs a massive on-going violation of section 227(b)( 1)(C) of the 

[TCPA] and section 64.1200(a)(3) of the Commission’s rules, a n d .  . . Fax.com is well aware of 

159171 I 13 PLAINTIFFS CONSOLIDATED 
OPPOSITIONTO MOTIONS TO DISMISS 

http://l;ax.Com
http://Fax.com
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Service. Gel by LEXSEEO 
CltallOn. 7 F.C.C.R. 8780 

7 FCC Rcd 8752, *; 1992 FCC L E N S  7019, **; 
57 FR 48333; 71 Rad. Reg. 2d (P  & F) 445 

I n  the Matter of RULES AND REGULATIONS IMPLEMENTING THE TELEPHONE CONSUMER 
PROTECTION ACT OF 1991 

CC Docket NO. 92-90 

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

7 FCC Rcd 8752; 1992 FCC LEXIS 7019; 57 FR 48333; 71 Rad. Reg. 2d (P  & F) 445 

RELEASE-NUMBER. FCC 92-443 

September 17, 1992 Released; Adopted October 16, 1992 

ACTION: [**1] 

REPORT AND ORDER 

JUDGES: 
By the Commission: Commissioner Barrett issuing a statement. 

OPINION: 
[*a7531 [10:227] Implementation of Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991; 

restrictions on telephone solicitations. 

The Rules are amended to implement the Telephone Consumer Protection Act of 1991. I n  
order to protect residential telephone subscriber privacy, telemarketers will be required to 
place a consumer on a "do-not-call'' l ist  if the consumer requests not to receive further 
solicitations. Calls made by automated telephone dialing systems and artificial or prerecorded 
.voice messages to  emergency lines, health care facilities, radio common carriers or any 
number for which the called party is charged for the call will be prohibited in the absence of 
an emergency or the prior express consent of the called party. Artificial or prerecorded voice 
messages to  residences, the transmission of unsolicited advertisements by telephone 
facsimile machines, and calls which simultaneously engage two or more lines of a multi-line 
business will be prohibited as well. Telephone facsimile machines and artificial or prerecorded 
voice messages will be required to  identify the sender of the transmission. [ * * 2 ]  Finally, 
artificial or prerecorded voice messages will be required to release the line of the called party 
within five seconds of notification that the called party has hung up.  Telephone Soiicitations, 
71 RR 2d 445 [1992]. 

[79: 12001 Restrictions on telephone solicitations; company-specific do-not-call lists. 

I n  order to protect residential telephone subscriber privacy, any person or entity engaged in 
telephone solicitation, as defined in the Telephone Consumer Protection Act Of 1991, Will be 
required to  maintain a list of residential telephone subscribers who request not to be called 
by the telemarketer. Each person or entity making a telephone solicitation, or on whose 
behalf a telephone solicitation is made, will be held responsible for maintenance of its do-not- 
call list and will be fully accountable for any problems arising in the maintenance and 
accuracy of the list. Telemarketers will be required to maintain do-not-call lists on a 
permanent basis so that consumers will not be burdened with periodic calls to renew a do- 
not-call request. I n  the absence of a specific request to the contrary, a residential P I l 7 P  -r .E;;fiiJ - 

http:Nwww.lexis.com/research/retneve?~m~5738b57465c49b9786372c20~~3~&cs~c=l 11/26/2002 



Get a Documenr - by Cltatlo FCC Rcd 8752 L h  Page 23 of 35 

when the called party's hang-up signal reaches the dialing system of the caller. Commenters 
generally do not indicate that they anticipate problems in complying with this requirement. 
n86 

n86 Commenters point out that the proposed rules, in the prohibition against line seizure, 5 
68.318, refer to  "automatic dialing devices," a term not employed elsewhere in the rules or 
the TCPA. Reading 5 227(d) as a whole, i t  IS clear that the requirement refers only to 
automatic telephone dialing systems. The title and language of that section will thus be 
revised to read "automatic telephone dialing systems." [ * * 6 8 ]  

[*8779] 2. Identification Requirements for Artificial or Prerecorded Voice Systems. 

53. The TCPA mandates that all artificial or prerecorded telephone messages delivered by an 
autodialer state clearly the identity of the caller at the beginning of the message and the 
caller's telephone number or address during or after the message, 5 227(d)(3)(A), and we 
adopt this requirement in  our rules, 64.1200(d). A number of commenters request that 
prerecorded messages be required to state the identity of the caller and the caller's 
telephone number (other than that of any autodialing system used to  place the call) or 
address within 30 seconds after the message begins, so that the called party would not have 
to  listen to the entire message before deciding whether to hang up. We reject the proposal to 
require that a telephone number or address be stated within 30 seconds of the beginning of 
an artificial or prerecorded message, because the TCPA requires only that the caller's identity 
be stated at  the beginning of the message. See 
with no evidence to  persuade us to request additional authority to adopt such a restriction. 
Finally, as suggested [**69] by several commenters, we will require callers leaving a 
telephone number to provide a number other than that of the autodialer or prerecorded 
message player which placed the call because the autodialer or message player number may 
be in constant use and not available to receive calls from the called party. 

3. Facsimile Machines. 

54. The TCPA requires that identifying information be placed on all telephone facsimile 
transmissions, and that telephone facsimile machines be capable of placing such information 
on all transmissions. 5 227(d). The TCPA further prohibits the use of telephone facsimile 
machines to send unsolicited advertisements. n87 
the facsimile [ *8780]  requirements for senders of facsimile messages urge the 
Commission to  clarify that carriers who simply provide transmission facilities that are used to 
transmit others' unsolicited facsimile advertisements may not be held liable for any violations 
of 64.1200(a)(3). n88 We concur with these commenters. In the absence of "a high degree 
of involvement or actual notice of an illegal use and failure to take steps to prevent such 
transmissions," common carriers [ * *70]  will not be held liable for the transmission of a 
prohibited facsimile message. Use of Common Carriers, 2 FCC Rcd 2819, 2820 (1987). 

n87 Mr. Fax and National Faxlist urged the Commission not to impose a ban on unsolicited 
telephone facsimile advertisements; National Faxlist suggested that a telephone facsimile do- 
not-call list be created in lieu of a complete prohibition on such unsolicited advertisements. 
GTE requested clarification that the identification requirement does not apply to each page of 
messages transmitted through imaging systems. 

I n  banning telephone facsimile advertisements, the TCPA leaves the Commission without 
discretion to create exemptions from or limit the effects of the prohibition (see 
(C); thus, such transmissions are banned in  our rules as they are in the TCPA. g 64.1200(a) 
(3). We note, however, that facsimile transmission from persons or entities who have an 
established business relationship with the recipient can be deemed to  be invited or permitted 
by the recipient. See para. 34, supra. Furthermore, the term "telephone facsimile machine" 
as defined in the TCPA and identically in our rules, 5 64.1200(f) clearly includes imaging 

227(d)(3)(B). We have been presented 

64.1200(e)(4). 

227(b)( 1)(C). Parties commenting On 

227(b)(1) 
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systems. The rules state that the first page or each page of a transmission to a facsimile 
machine must include identifying information. 

n88 See comments of SNET, Sprint, and reply comments of AT&T. [**71] 

E. Enforcement 

1. Private Right of Action. 

55. The TCPA provides consumers with a private right of action, if otherwise permitted by 
state law or court rules, for any violation of the autodialer or prerecorded voice message 
prohibitions and for any violation of the guidelines for telephone solicitations. 5 227(c)(5). 
Absent state law to the contrary, consumers may immediately file suit in state court if a 
caller violates the TCPA's prohibitions on the use of automatic telephone dialing system and 
artificial or prerecorded voice messages. 5 227(b)(3). A consumer may also file suit in state 
court if he or she has received more than one telephone call within any 12-month period by 
or on behalf of the same company in violation of the guidelines for making telephone 
solicitations. 5 227(c)(5). Telemarketers who have established and implemented reasonable 
practices and procedures in compliance with the latter section may present such compliance 
as an affirmative defense to any action for violation of telephone solicitation guidelines. 227 
(c)(5). The TCPA also permits states to  initiate a civil action in federal district court against a 
telemarketer who engages in a pattern [**72] or practice of violations of the TCPA. 55 227 
( f ) ( l )  and (2). States retain the power to initiate action in state court for violations of state 
telemarketing statutes. 5 227(f)(6). Finally, consumers may request that the Commission 
take enforcement action regarding violations of 5 227, consistent with the Commission's 
existing complaint procedures. n89 

n89 Pacific Bell asserts that complaint proceedings brought under 5 208 of the 
Communications Act, 4&S..C. 6 208, and based on violations of 5 227 of the Act, 47 U.S.C. 

could only be instituted against common carriers. Pacific Bell is correct with respect to 
complaints filed under Section 208 of the Act. I n  addition to the private right o f  action noted 
above, aggrieved persons or entities may report violations of the TCPA to the Commission 
and request action on such violations through the informal procedures set forth in Section 
1.41 of the rules, 47 C.F.R. 

2. State Law Preemption. 

56. The TCPA, in [*87811 
law on autodialing, artificial or prerecorded voice messages, and telephone solicitations. The 
TCPA does not preempt state law which imposes more restrictive intrastate requirements or 
regulations regarding: the use of facsimile machines to  send unsolicited advertisements; the 
use of automatic telephone dialing systems; the use of artificial or prerecorded voice 
messages; or the making of telephone solicitations. However, the TCPA specifically preempts 
state law where it conflicts with the technical and procedural requirements for identification 
of senders o f  telephone facsimile messages or autodialed artificial or prerecorded voice 
messages. 5 227(e). 

3. Other Matters 

57. A number of commenters urge the Commission to  request additional authority from 
Congress to  protect consumer privacy interests, arguing that the NPRM errs on the side of 
protecting commercial speech and does not adequately protect telephone subscribers from 
invasions of privacy by telemarketers. These commenters point out that telephone 
subscribers must receive at least one unwanted solicitation before making a claim under the 
rules. The National Consumers League urges the Commission to withdraw [**74] the 
NPRM and begin the rulemaking process anew, stating that the Commission failed to make 

1.41. See, e.g., 4 7 . S . C .  66 312 and 503(b). 

227(e), sets forth a standard for preemption of state [**73] 
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Judge Orders FCC to Stop Pursuit of Fax.com 

OLI 03 2002 

HI 51uli IIU,YII!CII 
*"lo, Hcp.,nel 
scotrhedrnnews corn 

A federal judge in Missouri ordered the Federal Communications Commission to back 
off its pursuit of $5.38 million i n  fines against Fax.com. a company it accused of 
sending unsolicired commercial or "junk" faxes on 489 occasions. 

U.S. District Coun Judge Stephen Limbaugh's C O U ~  order said that the FCC no longer 
had the right to pursue charges against Fax.com under the TCPA after Lirnbaugh 
declared its junk-fax ban provisions unconstitutional in March. The writ. filed Sepl. 20. 
could weaken the FCC's ability to enforce anti-junk fax rules while the constitutionality 
question remains i n  the air. 

A FCC spokesman would say only that the agency is "abiding by the judge's ruling.'' 
He declined further comment. 

Fax.com was named along with American Blast Fax in Zoo0 by the Missouri attorney 
general's office in a lawsuit alleging TCPA violations due to junk faxing. The FCC 
later became party to the lawsuit because the constitutionality of the junk-fax ban was 
under challenge 

American Blast Fax since has gone out of business, leaving Fax.com the sole 
defendant. In March 2002. Limbaugh ruled that the FCC and Missouri attorney general 
had failed to prove a substantial interest in regulating fax advertising and failed to 
show evidence that unsolicited commercial faxes unfairly place the cost of advertising 
on recipients. 

Limbaugh's decision is not bindinputside of his juridclion, which is based in St. 
Louis and covers the eastern half of Missouri. The Missouri attorney general and the 
FCC are appealing the decision in the U.S. 8th Circuit Court of Appeals. 

In August, the FCC began its own proceedings against Fax.com. saying the company 
had continued violating the TCPA despite repeated warnings and seeking $1 1,ooO per 
violation. The FCC also issued letters to 100 Fax.corn clients warning them that they 
faced similar penalties if they continued sending unsolicited commercial faxes through A 
Fax.com 

http://w ww.dmnews.com/cgi-bin/artprevbot.cgi?article~1d=21722&mhi=8465 11/26/2002 

http://Fax.com
http://Fax.com
http://w


DMNews.com 1 News I Anic.' 1 T r  Page 2 of 2 

At lhat poinl. F x c o r n  asked 1.irnbaugh to intervene. Limbaugh issued a temporary 
slay i n  lale August, which was made permanenl with the writ in September. 

"We were like, 'How can you do this? You've lost."' Mary Anne Wymore, an attorney 
for St. Louis l a w  firm Creensfelder. Hemker & Gale, which is representing Fax.com in 
the case. said of the FCC. "Wc've argued this case already." 

The broader implications of Limbaugh's decision have yet to be seen. Prior to his 
ruling. three other federal judges in Oregon. Texas and Indiana ruled that the junk-fax 
ban is constilulional. 

Wymore acknowledged that many see Lirnbaugh's opinion as an aberration. However. 
Limbaugh has noted what might be flawed thinking by the other federal judges who 
have considered the constitulionality issue, she said. 

"Limbaugh was the first to say, Wail a minute, this analysis is wrong,' " she said 

Fax.com also faces a trillion-dollar civil suit under the TCPA and state law in 
California tiled by Silicon Valley entrepreneur Steve Kirsch. While Limbaugh's 
decision may nor be binding on that case. or any orher junk-fax case in court now or lo 
come, other federal judges will consider i t ,  and state judges often defer to federal court 
rulings on matters of federal law. Wyrnore said. 

Fax.com's legal briefs i n  the pending appeal of Limbaugh's decision were due Oct. 7. 
and the govemmenl was scheduled to reply no later than Oct. 21. A hearing likely will 
follow two to three months h e r .  and a decision may be released in the spring, Wymore 
said. 

Read more articles on Teleseryices 

Copyright 2001 Courtenay Communications Corporation. lerrns 8 Privacv Pol~cy 
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1J.S. District Court 

Eastern District of Missouri (Eastern) 

CIVIL DOCKET FOR CASE #: 00-CV-933 

Nixon v. American Blast Fax 

Filed: 06/08/00 
Assigned to: Honorable Stephen N. Limbaugh 

Demand: $0,000 
Nature of Suit: 890 
Lead Docket: None 

Jurisdiction: Federal Question 
Dkt# in  other court None 

Cause: 47:0227 Telephone Consumer Protection Act 

JEREMIAH W .  NIXON. Attory J .  Robert Sears 
General. Scate of M I S S O U I : ,  ex 314-G13-2550 €ax 
re1 [COR LD NTCl 

plaintiff LATHROP AND GAGE 
10 S. Broadway 
Suite 1300 
St. Louis, MO 63102-1708 
314-613-2500 
FTS 613-2550 
Jill C. LaHue 
573-751-7948 fax 
[COR LD NTCI 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF MISSOURI 
Assistant Attorney General 
221 W .  High Street 
P.O. Box 8 9 9  
JefEerson City, MO 65102-0899 
573-751-3321 
FTS 751-3825 
Deborah L .  Golernon 
314-539-2777 fax 
[COR LD NTCI 

OFFICE OF U.S.  ATTORNEY 
1 1 1  S .  Tenth Street 
20th Floo r  
St. Louis, MO 63102 
314-539-2200 
FTS 539-7695 
L i s a  A. O l s o n  
202-616-8470 fax 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
intervenor 

r 

http://pacer.moed.uscourts.gov/dc/cgi-bin/pacer740.pl 11/26/2002 
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M O I ' I O N  by movant Fax.Com, Inc. in 4:00-cv-00933 for leave 
t o  t i l e  its Reply to the Brief in Opposition to Fax.com's 
Emergency Motion for Writ of Mandamus Pursuant to 28 USC 
Sec. 1651 and €or injunctive Relief pursuant to Fed.R.Civ. 
F .  G Z ( c 1 ,  i?led on 9/6/02 by IntervenoriAppellant the FCC, 
in excess oi this Court's 15 page limitation iarl) 
IEntry date 09/17/02] [Edit date 09/17/02] [ 4 : 0 0 c v 9 3 3 ]  

RULED DOCUMENT by Honorable Stephen N. Lirnbaugh granting 
motion for leave to file its Reply to the Brief in 
Opposition to Fax.com's Emergency Motion f o r  Writ of 
Mandamus Pursuant to 28 USC Sec. 1651 and for Injunctive 
Relief pursuant to Fed.R.Civ. P. 62ic). filed on 9/6/02 by 
Intervenor/Appellant the FCC, in excess of this Court's 15 
page limitation [ 1 0 1 - 1 1  LEAVE TO FILE GRANTED (cc: all 
counsel) larl) [Entry date 09/17/02] [4:OOcv9331 

REPLY TO THE FCC'S 9/6/02 BRIEF IN OPPOSITION TO FhX.COM'S 
EMERGENCY MOTION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS PURSUANT TO 28 USC 
SEC. 1651 AND FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF PURSUANT TO 
FED.R.CIV.P. 62ic) by movant Fax.Com. Inc. in 4:00-cv-00933 
re 191-11 (arl) IEntry date 09/17/02] [4:OOcv9331 

ORDER by Honorable Stephen N. Limbaugh ~ IT IS THEREFORE 
ORDERED that having determined it has jurisdiction, this 
Court's preliminary order of August 29, 2002 restricting 
certain actions of the Federal Communcations Commission. 
Nos. A - E ,  is made permanent. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that. 
pending the issuance of a mandate at the conclusion of the 
appeal o t  this Court's order of March 13, 2002 before the 
United States Court of Appeals f o r  the Eighth Circuit. (a) 
The Federal Communication Commission 1s hereby ordered to 
stay any and all proceedings under the Telephone Consumer 
Protection Act (TCPhl dealing wlth unsolicited 
advertisements transmitted by facsimile. 47 U.S.C. Sec. 
227. or related regulations against Fax.com and/or any 
customr, client or party in privity with Fax.com; (b) to 
cease and desist from enforcing, or attempting to enforce. 
those provisions of the TCPA dealing with unsolicited 
advertisements transmitted by facsimile, 47 U.S.C. Sec. 
227, or related regulations against Fax.com and/or any 
customer. client or party in privity with Fax.com; (cl to 
cease and desist from requiring any response and/or payment 
from Fax.com with regard to the Notice of Apparent 
Liability for Forfeiture that is the subject of Fax.com'S 
Motion, File No. EB-02-TC-120, NAL/Acct. NO. 200232170004. 
FRN 0007-2970-47, or in any way proceeding under said 
Notice; (d) to identify by Sept. 4, 2002 any and all 
parties and/or entities agains twhom it plans to proceed in 
connection with the Notice of Apparent Liability for 
ForEeiture against Fax.com and/or its announcement of Aug. 
7. 2002 of its intent to issue Citations and Letters of 
Inquiry: le1 to provide notice by Sept. 9 ,  2002 to any and 
all parties andlor entities identified in accordance with 
paragraph d of this Order: specifically advising them of 
this Order. IT IS FINALLY ORDERED that this Court shall 
retain jurisdiction over this matter for purposes of 
enforcing this Order and its provisions. terminating case 

http:Ilpacer.moed.uscourts.govldclcgi-bin/pacer740.pi 11/26/2002 
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t o  p a r t i e s .  i c f i  [ E n t r y  date  1 1 / 2 2 / 0 2 ]  14:0Ocv9331 

Case Flags: 
TERMED 
LEADTR 
APPEAL 
UIADV 

END OF DOCKET: 4:00cv933 

PACER Service Center 
Transaction Receipt 

11/26/2002 17 51 17 

http://pacer.moed.uscou1ts.gov/dc/cgi-bin/pacer740.pl 1 1/26/2002 

http://pacer.moed.uscou1ts.gov/dc/cgi-bin/pacer740.pl
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PROOF OF SERVICE BY FACSIMILE AND COURIER 

I ,  Rizalino Altares, declare: 

1 am a cit ixn of thc United States and employed in San Francisco County, 

Calitomia. I am over the age of eighteen years and not a pany to the within-entitled action. My 

business address is Embarcadero Center West, 275 Battery Street, 30th Floor, San Francisco, 

California 941 11.3339. On November 26. 2002, I served a copy of the within document(s): 

1. PLAINTIFF'S CONSOLIDATED MEMORANDUM OF 
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN OPPOSITION TO 
DEFENDANTS' MOTIONS TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF 
SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION, FAILURE TO STATE 
A CLAIM AND BASED ON PRIMARY JURISDICTION, and 

PROOF OF SERVICE BY FACSIMILE AND COURIER. 

by transmitting via facsimile the document(s) listed above to the fax number(s) set 
forth below on this date before 5:OO p.m. 

by placing the docurnent(s) listed above i n  a sealed envelope and causing the 
envelope to be delivered to a point-to-point courier for delivery. 

2. 

Forrest Booth. Eso. Richard R. Patch. Eso . ~~ 
~ ~~~~~~~ . ~~. 

Cynthia L. Mitchell, Esq. 
COZEN O'CONNOR 
425 California Street, Suite 1800 

Julia D. Greer,~Esq. 
COBLENTZ. PATCH, DUFFY & BASS, LLP 
222 Kearney Street. 7th Floor 

San Francisco, CA 94104 
FAX: (415) 617-6101 FAX: (415) 989-1663 

San Francisco, CA 94108-4510 

I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of collection and processing 

correspondence for mailing. Under that practice i t  would be deposited with the US. Postal 

Service on that same day with postage thereon fu l ly  prepaid in the ordinarycourse of business. I 

am aware that on motion of the patty served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation 

date or postage meter date is more than one day after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 

above is true and correct 

Executed on November 26,20 
, 

159205 I 

J 


